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Saed Hasan, doing business as Towncar Limo, pro se, for Respondent.  

I. statement  
1. On May 31, 2007, Staff of the Public Utilities Commission (Staff) issued Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (CPAN) No. 83535 to Mr. Saed Hasan, also known as Mr. Jim Hasan, doing business as Towncar Limo (Mr. Hasan or Respondent).
  In the CPAN, Staff alleges that Respondent committed one violation of Rule 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 391.21(a); one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1); one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 395.8(a); one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 396.3(b)(1); one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 396.3(b)(2); and one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 396.3(b)(3).  The maximum civil penalty for these six alleged violations is $3,275.  

2. On June 20, 2007, the Commission issued its Order Setting Hearing and Notice of Hearing.  This Order scheduled a hearing in this matter for July 18, 2007.  

3. The hearing was held as scheduled.  Both parties were present and participated.  

4. The Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) heard the testimony of Mr. John Opeka
 on behalf of Staff and of Respondent on his own behalf.  Hearing Exhibits No. 1 through No. 4 were marked, offered, and admitted into evidence.  At the conclusion of the hearing, the ALJ closed the evidentiary record and took the matter under advisement.  

5. Pursuant to § 40-6-109, C.R.S., the record and exhibits of the proceeding together with a written recommended decision are transmitted to the Commission.  

II. findings of fact  
6. The facts are undisputed.  

7. Respondent is an individual who offers transportation service by luxury limousine pursuant to Commission Authority No. LL-01391.  
8. Staff properly served the CPAN by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Mr. Hasan received the CPAN on June 1, 2007.  

9. On May 3, 2005, Staff performed a Transportation Safety and Compliance Review of Respondent.
  This review consisted, in relevant part, of a review of Respondent's records to assess Respondent's compliance with applicable federal requirements.  During the 2005 review, Staff informed Respondent of, and discussed with Respondent, five of the specific recordkeeping and other requirements which are set out in the CPAN.
  Following that review, Staff issued a Transportation Safety and Compliance Review Final Report (2005 Final Report), which was provided to Respondent.  Hearing Exhibit No. 2.
  
10. On May 31, 2007, Staff witness Opeka performed a Transportation Safety and Compliance Review of Respondent.  This review consisted, in relevant part, of a review of Respondent's available records to assess Respondent's compliance with applicable federal requirements.  During this review, Staff witness Opeka informed Respondent of, and discussed with Respondent, the specific recordkeeping and other shortcomings which are enumerated in Hearing Exhibit No. 1.  Following that review, Staff issued a Transportation Safety and Compliance Review Final Report (2007 Final Report), which was provided to Respondent.  Hearing Exhibit No. 1.  

11. As a matter of policy and practice, Staff does not issue a CPAN for an alleged violation unless a motor vehicle carrier previously has received a written notice of the same alleged violation.  Based on the 2005 Final Report, Staff witness Opeka issued the CPAN at issue in this proceeding because, in his opinion, at the time of the 2007 Safety and Compliance Review, Respondent was aware of the recordkeeping and other requirements which are the subject of the CPAN and, given that prior knowledge, Respondent intentionally failed to comply with each requirement.  
12. On July 17, 2007, Staff received a copy of a Medical Examiner's Certificate issued to Respondent on July 16, 2007.  Hearing Exhibit No. 4.  This certificate complies with the requirements of 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1).  Staff witness Opeka considers Respondent's obtaining the Medical Examiner's Certificate to be a factor which the Commission could consider in mitigation, although it took several requests before Respondent obtained the required medical certificate.  
13. At the time of the 2007 Safety and Compliance Review, Respondent was the sole driver and used only one vehicle to provide service.
  Allegations in the CPAN which pertain to "a driver" (i.e., counts 1-3) pertain to Mr. Hasan, and allegations which pertain to "vehicles" (i.e., counts 4-6) pertain to that one vehicle.  

At the hearing, Respondent testified.  He admitted the substantive allegations of 

14. the CPAN, testified that Staff witness Opeka conducted the Safety and Compliance Review as shown on the 2007 Final Report,
 and recalled the 2005 Safety and Compliance Review and the 2005 Final Report.  
15. Both Respondent's testimony and his demeanor evidenced his concern about the violations alleged in the CPAN.  He readily acknowledged that he was not in compliance with the cited Safety Rules on May 31, 2007 and accepted full responsibility.  He expressed his willingness to take steps to come into compliance with the Safety Rules, although that willingness is circumscribed to some degree by his financial situation.  
16. Respondent testified in detail about his dire financial straits and current personal situation.  Respondent is separated from his spouse and, as a result, no longer resides at (or has access to) the marital abode.  Respondent has no permanent residence
 and has no permanent business address, and he has had neither since at least May 31, 2007 (the date of the 2007 review).
  Although Respondent uses a mail box as his business address, he often cannot obtain the mail delivered to that box because he is not able to remain current on the monthly rental fee.  
17. Respondent is in a severe financial bind and, in his words, is "barely staying in business."  Respondent was very forthcoming about his financial situation and, again in his words, "cannot pay any amount" of civil penalty.  
As to the first count in the CPAN, which alleges that Respondent failed to require 

18. a driver to furnish an employment application, Respondent testified that he was unaware that this requirement included him.  The ALJ finds this testimony unpersuasive in view of the 2005 Final Report which states that Mr. Hasan was cited in 2005 because he did not have on file an employment application for "J. Hasan" (that is, for Respondent).  Hearing Exhibit No. 2 at 2.  
19. As to the second count in the CPAN, which alleges that Respondent permitted a driver (i.e., himself) to drive without a current medical certificate, Respondent had a valid Federal Aviation Administration medical certificate for his pilot's license on May 31, 2007.  This certificate is not the medical certificate required by 49 CFR § 301.45(b)(1).  
20. Respondent was able to obtain the necessary Medical Examiner's Certificate (Hearing Exhibit No. 4) after May 31, 2007 because another luxury limousine service paid for the medical examination.  

21. As to the third count in the CPAN, which alleges that Respondent failed to require a driver (i.e., himself) to prepare a record of duty status, Respondent produced an appointment book during the 2007 review.  This appointment book contained some, but not all, of the information required to be kept with respect to a driver's duty status.  The record contains no testimony as to which information was maintained and which was not, and the appointment book is not in evidence.  
22. As to the fourth, fifth, and sixth counts in the CPAN, which allege failures to maintain certain vehicle-related records, the records and receipts which Respondent maintained were not available on May 31, 2007 because they were located in his marital home to which Respondent had no access.  On May 31, 2007, Respondent had some, but not all, of the required information and records.  There is no testimony specifying either the information maintained or the documents maintained.  The documents which Respondent did possess are not in the record.  
III. discussion  
23. Respondent does not challenge the Commission’s jurisdiction, and the facts establish the Commission’s jurisdiction in this proceeding.  The Commission has subject matter jurisdiction over this case.  In addition, the Commission has personal jurisdiction over Respondent, who entered a general appearance at the hearing.  

24. A carrier providing luxury limousine service is a "motor vehicle carrier exempt from regulation as a public utility," as that term is defined in § 40-16-101(4), C.R.S.  An exempt carrier is subject to the regulations found at 4 CCR 723-6-6100 through 6105 (Safety Rules).  Section 40-16-105(1), C.R.S., and Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6100(a)(I).  Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102, in part, incorporates by reference certain federal requirements relating to motor vehicle carriers found at Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations (revised as of October 1, 2005).  Respondent is subject to, and must comply with, the Safety Rules and the incorporated federal rules.  

25. In order for the Commission to assess a civil penalty against Respondent, Staff must prove that Respondent violated the Commission rules, including the incorporated federal rules, and that each violation was intentional.  Section 40-7-113(1)(g), C.R.S.  The Commission has determined that a violation is intentional within the meaning of § 40-7-113(1)(g), C.R.S., when a person is fully aware of a requirement or restriction and nonetheless commits an act, or fails to act, and that act or omission violates the requirement or restriction.  Decision No. C00-1075 at 13-14.  The ALJ applies this definition of intentional violation in this Decision.  
26. Staff bears the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence.  Section 40-7-116(1), C.R.S. (burden on Commission to prove each violation alleged in CPAN by preponderance of evidence); § 13-25-127(1), C.R.S.; Rule 4 CCR 723-1-1500.  To meet its burden of proof here, Staff must prove, by a preponderance of the evidence, facts which establish that each alleged violation occurred, which establish that each alleged violation was intentional, and which support the amount of the civil penalty which Staff asks the Commission to assess.
  Staff has met its burden of proof when the evidence, however slightly, tips in Staff's favor.  

27. Count 1.  At the hearing Respondent admitted that, on May 31, 2007, he committed one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 391.21(a) as alleged in count 1 of the CPAN.
  At the time of this violation, Respondent, as a carrier, was aware that he was required to require a driver to furnish an employment application.  Notwithstanding this knowledge, Respondent did not require a driver (i.e., himself) to furnish an employment application.  Based on the undisputed evidence and applying the Commission's definition of intentional, the ALJ finds that the admitted violation was intentional.  The ALJ finds that Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this intentional violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $100.  

28. Count 2.  The Commission has recently reminded us that "it is legally permissible for the finder-of-fact to draw reasonable inferences from the evidence presented."  Decision No. C07-0669 at ¶ 7 (emphasis supplied).  Accordingly, in determining whether Staff met its burden of proof with respect to count 2 of the CPAN, the ALJ considered whether there is either direct evidence of an intentional violation or evidence from which a reasonable inference of an intentional violation may be drawn.  

29. At the hearing Respondent admitted that, on May 31, 2007, he did not have a current medical examiner's certificate and that this failure violated Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1) as alleged in count 2 of the CPAN.
  There is persuasive evidence, albeit based on inferences, that the violation was intentional.  

30. The 2005 Final Report contains no reference to 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1), which is the basis for count 2 of the CPAN.  Staff witness Opeka testified that Number 7 on the 2005 Final Report corresponds to count 2 of the CPAN.  Number 7 reads:  49 CFR "391.51(b)(7)  …  You have failed to maintain, in the [driver] qualification file, the medical examiner's certificate."  (Emphasis supplied.)  Count 2 of the CPAN alleges that Respondent violated 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1) by permitting "a driver to drive that has not been medically examined and certified in the previous 24 months."  Clearly, these are not the same violations:  the 2005 Final Report addresses a failure to maintain a current medical certificate in a driver's file, and count 2 of the CPAN addresses a failure of a driver to have a current medical certificate.  Thus, the 2005 Final Report on its face does not establish that Respondent was aware of the requirement to have a current medical certificate.  

Notwithstanding the absence of direct evidence, the record permits one to draw two reasonable inferences from the 2005 Final Report's citing Respondent for failure to maintain a current medical certificate in a driver's file.  First, one may reasonably infer that, on May 3, 2005 (the date of the 2005 review), Respondent had a current medical certificate.  If Respondent had not had a current medical certificate in May, 2005, then it is logical to assume that Staff would have cited him for that violation and not for the recordkeeping violation.  This is 

31. consistent with the approach taken by Staff in the 2007 Final Report.  Second, one may reasonably infer that Respondent was aware of the requirement to have a current medical certificate because the citation for failure to maintain a current medical certificate in a driver's file logically presupposes the existence of such a medical certificate.  Based on these inferences, and based independently on Respondent's admission of the violation, the ALJ finds that Respondent was aware that he had to have a current medical certificate for each driver, including himself.  

32. A Medical Examiner's Certificate clearly states its date of expiration.  Hearing Exhibit No. 4.  Thus, it is reasonable to infer that Respondent knew the date on which his medical certificate would expire.  
33. Respondent admitted that he violated 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1) on May 31, 2007.  Thus, it is reasonable to infer that, on the date of the inspection, Respondent did not have a current medical certificate because it expired prior to May 31, 2007, the date of the 2007 review.  
34. Based on the foregoing, at the time of this violation, Respondent, as a carrier, was aware that he was responsible for a driver who had not been medically certified as qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle (here, a luxury limousine) within the preceding 24 months.  Notwithstanding this knowledge, Respondent did not require a driver (i.e., himself) to have such a current medical certificate.  Based on the undisputed evidence and applying the Commission's definition of intentional, the ALJ finds that the admitted violation was intentional.  The ALJ finds that Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this intentional violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $2,500.  
35. Count 3.  At the hearing Respondent admitted, and on that basis the ALJ finds, that on May 31, 2007 Respondent committed one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) as alleged in count 3 of the CPAN.
  At the time of this violation, Respondent was aware that he was required to require a driver to prepare a record of duty status which contained specific information.  Notwithstanding this knowledge, Respondent did not require a driver (i.e., himself) to prepare a record of duty status which contained the requisite information.  Based on the undisputed evidence and applying the Commission's definition of intentional, the ALJ finds that the admitted violation was intentional.  The ALJ finds that Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this intentional violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $375.  
36. Count 4.  At the hearing Respondent admitted, and on that basis the ALJ finds, that on May 31, 2007 Respondent committed one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 396.3(b)(1) as alleged in count 4 of the CPAN.  At the time of this violation, Respondent was aware that he was required to maintain records which properly identify each vehicle used to provide service.  Notwithstanding this knowledge, Respondent did not maintain the required records.  Based on the undisputed evidence and applying the Commission's definition of intentional, the ALJ finds that the admitted violation was intentional.  The ALJ finds that Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this intentional violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $100.  
37. Count 5.  At the hearing Respondent admitted, and on that basis the ALJ finds, that on May 31, 2007 Respondent committed one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 396.3(b)(2) as alleged in count 5 of the CPAN.  At the time of this violation, Respondent was aware that he was required to maintain, for each vehicle used to provide service, records which afford a "means to indicate the nature and due date of the various inspection and maintenance operations to be performed[.]"  49 CFR § 396.3(b)(2).  Notwithstanding this knowledge, Respondent failed to maintain the required records for each vehicle used to provide service.  Based on the undisputed evidence and applying the Commission's definition of intentional, the ALJ finds that the admitted violation was intentional.  The ALJ finds that Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this intentional violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $100.   
38. Count 6.  At the hearing Respondent admitted, and on that basis the ALJ finds, that on May 31, 2007 Respondent committed one violation of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102 and the incorporated 49 CFR § 396.3(b)(3) as alleged in count 6 of the CPAN.  At the time of this violation, Respondent was aware that he was required to maintain, for each vehicles used to provide service, a "record of inspection, repairs, and maintenance indicating their date and nature[.]"  49 CFR § 396.3(b)(3).  Notwithstanding this knowledge, Respondent failed to maintain the required records for each vehicle used to provide service.  Based on the undisputed evidence and applying the Commission's definition of intentional, the ALJ finds that the admitted violation was intentional.  The ALJ finds that Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this intentional violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $100.  

39. Amount of the civil penalty.  Staff has established that Respondent committed six intentional violations of the Safety Rules.  The remaining issue to be decided is the amount of the civil penalty which the Commission should assess.  The maximum potential civil penalty in this matter is $3,275.  

With regard to the amount of the civil penalty to be assessed, Rule 4 CCR 723-1-1302(b), provides as follows:  

The Commission may impose a civil penalty, where provided by law, after considering evidence concerning the following factors:  

(I)
The nature, circumstances, and gravity of the violation;  

(II)
The degree of the respondent's culpability;  

(III)
The respondent's history of prior offenses;  

(IV)
The respondent's ability to pay;  

(V)
Any good faith efforts by the respondent in attempting to achieve compliance and to prevent future similar violations;  

(VI)
The effect on the respondent's ability to continue in business;  

(VII)
The size of the business of the respondent; and  

(VIII)
Such other factors as equity and fairness may require.  

The amount of the civil penalty to be assessed is discretionary with the Commission and is based on the evidentiary record.  
As indicated by the use of the word "and," these eight factors are cumulative.  The absence of proof as to any of these items is not fatal; the Commission simply determines the amount of the civil penalty based on the evidence produced.  On a case-by-case basis, the Commission balances and weighs the stated factors as it deems appropriate.  

40. In determining the amount of the civil penalty in this case, the ALJ began with the full range of options (i.e., from $0.01 to $3,275); then considered the evidence presented on the factors in aggravation and in mitigation; and finally tested the amount of the civil penalty against the purposes underlying all civil penalty assessments.  
Based on the record in this case, the ALJ finds that a civil penalty of $50 should be assessed in this case.  In making this determination, the ALJ considered the Safety Rules and their public safety and public welfare purposes; considered the factors enumerated in Rule 4 CCR 723-1-1302(b) (including aggravation and mitigation), considered Commission guidance provided in previous civil penalty case decisions; considered the purposes served by civil penalties; and considered the range of civil penalty assessments found to be reasonable in other civil penalty cases.  

41. In aggravation with respect to all counts of the CPAN, the ALJ considered Respondent's actual knowledge of the Safety Rules which he violated.  In addition, the ALJ considered that Respondent violated Safety Rules, the general purpose of which is to protect the traveling public and motorists.  
42. In mitigation with respect to counts 1, 2, and 3 of the CPAN, the ALJ considered that Mr. Hasan is the only driver and, therefore, that those counts pertain solely to him.  
43. In mitigation with respect to count 2 of the CPAN, the ALJ considered that Mr. Hasan obtained the required Medical Examiner's Certificate even though he had to arrange for another carrier to pay for the medical examination.  In addition, the ALJ considered that Mr. Hasan passed the medical examination required for him to maintain his pilot's license and, thus, it is reasonable to infer that, had he had the medical examination, he would have passed the medical examination required to establish that he is qualified to operate a luxury limousine.
  The existence of the pilot's medical examination lessened significantly the ALJ's concern about Mr. Hasan's physical qualifications and about the safety of the traveling public and motorists.  
44. In mitigation with respect to count 3, the ALJ considered that Respondent made an attempt to maintain records of duty status by means of his appointment book.  Although Respondent admitted that his records were insufficient to meet the requirements of 49 CFR § 395.8(a), the attempt does show an effort to comply.  
In mitigation with respect to counts 4-6 of the CPAN, the ALJ considered that 

45. Respondent made an attempt to maintain the records required by 49 CFR §§ 396.3(b)(1) through (b)(3) and that he could not produce records, at least in part, because he could not gain access to his marital residence where his records were stored/located.  Although Respondent admitted that his records were insufficient to meet the requirements of 49 CFR §§ 396.3(b)(1) through (b)(3), the attempt does show an effort to comply.  
46. In mitigation as to all counts of the CPAN, the ALJ considered Respondent's contrition, as evidenced by his demeanor, and his efforts, within the bounds of his current situation, to come into compliance.  

47. In mitigation, as to all counts of the CPAN, the ALJ considered Respondent's current financial circumstances.  The unrebutted and unrefuted evidence establishes that any civil penalty assessed against Respondent will have adverse (even dire) consequences on his ability to remain in business and that Respondent's circumstances are such that he cannot afford readily to pay a civil penalty of any amount.  A civil penalty of $50 assessed against Respondent will have an enormous impact on him, given his circumstances.  This is a significant and controlling element considered by the ALJ in determining a reasonable civil penalty in this case.  

The ALJ finds that, given the circumstances of this case and particularly of this Respondent, a civil penalty of $50 achieves the following purposes underlying civil penalty assessments:  (a) deterring future violations; (b) motivating Respondent to come into compliance with the law; and (c) punishing Respondent for his past behavior.  

IV. conclusions  
48. Staff has sustained its burden of proving the allegations contained in CPAN by a preponderance of the evidence as required by § 40-7-116, C.R.S.  
49. The mitigating factors discussed above warrant a reduction in the civil penalty for the violations described in counts 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of the CPAN from $3,275 to $50.  

50. Pursuant to § 40-6-109(2), C.R.S., the ALJ recommends that the Commission enter the following order.  

V. ORDER
A. The Commission Orders That:
1. Mr. Saed Hasan, also known as Mr. Jim Hasan, doing business as Towncar Limo, is assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $50.  

2. Mr. Saed Hasan, also known as Mr. Jim Hasan, doing business as Towncar Limo, shall pay to the Commission the assessed civil penalty, in full, within 30 days of the date on which this Recommended Decision is effective.  

3. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

4. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.  

If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.  

5. If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.  
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Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO


MANA L. JENNINGS-FADER
________________________________

Administrative Law Judge
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�  The CPAN is Hearing Exhibit No. 3.  


�  Mr. Opeka is a Criminal Investigator employed by the Commission.  


�  This investigation was conducted by Commission Investigator Ted M. Barrett, who did not testify.  


�  Compare Hearing Exhibit No. 2 (Transportation Safety and Compliance Review Final Report) with Hearing Exhibit No. 3 (CPAN).  Number 3 on the Final Report corresponds to Count 1 of the CPAN.  Number 8 of the Final Report corresponds to Count 3 of the CPAN.  Number 9 of the Final Report corresponds to Count 4 of the CPAN.  Number 10 of the Final Report corresponds to Count 5 of the CPAN.  Number 11 of the Final Report corresponds to Count 6 of the CPAN.  


�  The Hearing Exhibit is dated May 31, 2007.  This is the date on which Staff witness Opeka printed the document from the Commission's record maintenance system.  The date of the review was May 3, 2005, as shown on the first line of text.  





�  At the time of the 2005 review, Respondent had one driver and one vehicle.  Hearing Exhibit No. 2 at 1.  


�  The CPAN alleges that the violations occurred on May 30, 2007.  Hearing Exhibit No. 3 at 1.  In view of Respondent's testimony, of Staff's testimony, and of Hearing Exhibit No. 1 (all of which establish that the Safety and Compliance Review occurred on May 31, 2007), the CPAN is deemed amended to conform to the evidence presented at hearing.  Thus, the ALJ finds that the violations occurred on May 31, 2007.  


�  On the day of the hearing, Respondent apologized for his appearance, explaining that he was living in his vehicle at the time.  


�  The May, 2007 Safety and Compliance Review was conducted in a parking lot because Respondent did not have a permanent address.  


�  Staff witness Opeka testified that Staff recommended no specific amount in civil penalties in this proceeding and left determination of an appropriate civil penalty to the judgment of the Commission.  


�  Section 390.11 of 49 CFR holds the carrier (here, Respondent) responsible for a driver's failure to furnish an employment application.  In addition, Respondent is the driver who is required, pursuant to 49 CFR § 391.21(a), to submit an employment application.  


�  Section 390.11 of 49 CFR holds the carrier (here, Respondent) responsible for a driver who has not been  medically certified as qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle (here, a luxury limousine) within the preceding 24 months.  In addition, Respondent is the driver who, pursuant to 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1), must have been medically certified as qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle (here, a luxury limousine) within the preceding 24 months.  


�  Section 390.11 of 49 CFR holds the carrier (here, Respondent) responsible for a driver's failure to prepare a record of duty status with the required information.  In addition, Respondent is the driver who is required, pursuant to 49 CFR § 395.8(a), to prepare a record of duty status with complete information.  


�  In fact, Mr. Hasan did pass the medical examination required by 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1).  Hearing Exhibit No. 4.  
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